
Democratic Services Contact Officer: Patrick Adams (Agenda) Graham Watts (Minutes) 03450 450 500

16 September 2014

To: Chairman – Councillor David Bard
Vice-Chairman – Councillor Kevin Cuffley
Members of the Civic Affairs Committee – Councillors Nigel Cathcart, 
Simon Edwards, Alison Elcox, Sue Ellington, Sebastian Kindersley, 
Douglas de Lacey, Ray Manning, Deborah Roberts, Bridget Smith, Jim Stewart 
and Bunty Waters

Quorum: 4

Dear Councillor

You are invited to attend the next meeting of CIVIC AFFAIRS COMMITTEE, which will be held 
in SWANSLEY ROOM, GROUND FLOOR at South Cambridgeshire Hall on THURSDAY, 25 
SEPTEMBER 2014 at 10.00 a.m.

Members are respectfully reminded that when substituting on committees, subcommittees, and 
outside or joint bodies, Democratic Services must be advised of the substitution in advance of 
the meeting.  It is not possible to accept a substitute once the meeting has started.  Council 
Standing Order 4.3 refers.

Yours faithfully
JEAN HUNTER
Chief Executive

The Council is committed to improving, for all members of the 
community, access to its agendas and minutes.  We try to take all 
circumstances into account but, if you have any specific needs, 

please let us know, and we will do what we can to help you.

AGENDA
PAGES

PROCEDURAL ITEMS

1. Apologies for Absence 

2. Declarations of Interest 

3. Minutes of Previous Meeting 1 - 6
To authorise the Chairman to sign the Minutes of the meeting held on 20 
March 2014 as a correct record.

RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL

4. The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014 7 - 12

South Cambridgeshire Hall
Cambourne Business Park
Cambourne
Cambridge
CB23 6EA

t: 03450 450 500
f: 01954 713149
www.scambs.gov.uk



INFORMATION ITEMS

5. Darwin Green Community Governance Review 13 - 16

6. Update on Code of Conduct Complaints 17 - 18

7. County Electoral Review - Verbal Report from the Electoral Services 
Manager 
On 23 September, the Local Government Boundary Commission for 
England are scheduled to commence consultation on new electoral 
arrangements for Cambridgeshire County Council. The review will 
address council size along with numbers and boundaries of new 
divisions. The consultation is scheduled to end on 1 December 2014.

8. District Electoral Review 19 - 20
A letter from the Local Government Boundary Commission is attached, 
which states that an electoral review of the District will commence in 
November 2015 and conclude in September 2016, with all out elections 
being held in 2019.

Technical guidance on the electoral review process can be found on the 
Boundary Commission’s website www.lgbce.org.uk

STANDING ITEMS

9. Dates of next meetings 
To note the dates of the next meetings:

 Thursday 15 January 2015 at 10am
 Thursday 16 April 2015 at 10am

OUR LONG-TERM VISION

South Cambridgeshire will continue to be the best place to live, work and study in the country. 
Our district will demonstrate impressive and sustainable economic growth. Our residents will 
have a superb quality of life in an exceptionally beautiful, rural and green environment.

The Council will be recognised as consistently innovative and a high performer with a track 
record of delivering value for money by focusing on the priorities, needs and aspirations of our 
residents, parishes and businesses.

OUR VALUES

We will demonstrate our corporate values in all our actions. These are:
 Trust
 Mutual respect
 A commitment to improving services
 Customer service

http://www.lgbce.org.uk/__data/assets/pdf_file/0006/10410/technical-guidance-2014.pdf
http://www.lgbce.org.uk/


GUIDANCE NOTES FOR VISITORS TO SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE HALL
Notes to help those people visiting the South Cambridgeshire District Council offices

While we try to make sure that you stay safe when visiting South Cambridgeshire Hall, you also have a 
responsibility for your own safety, and that of others.

Security
When attending meetings in non-public areas of the Council offices you must report to Reception, sign in, 
and at all times wear the Visitor badge issued.  Before leaving the building, please sign out and return the 
Visitor badge to Reception.
Public seating in meeting rooms is limited. For further details contact Democratic Services on 03450 450 
500 or e-mail democratic.services@scambs.gov.uk

Emergency and Evacuation
In the event of a fire, a continuous alarm will sound.  Leave the building using the nearest escape route; 
from the Council Chamber or Mezzanine viewing gallery this would be via the staircase just outside the 
door.  Go to the assembly point at the far side of the staff car park opposite the staff  entrance

 Do not use the lifts to leave the building.  If you are unable to use stairs by yourself, the 
emergency staircase landings have fire refuge areas, which give protection for a minimum of 1.5 
hours.  Press the alarm button and wait for help from Council fire wardens or the fire brigade.

 Do not re-enter the building until the officer in charge or the fire brigade confirms that it is safe to 
do so.

First Aid
If you feel unwell or need first aid, please alert a member of staff.

Access for People with Disabilities
We are committed to improving, for all members of the community, access to our agendas and minutes. 
We try to take all circumstances into account but, if you have any specific needs, please let us know, and 
we will do what we can to help you.  All meeting rooms are accessible to wheelchair users.  There are 
disabled toilet facilities on each floor of the building.  Infra-red hearing assistance systems are available in 
the Council Chamber and viewing gallery. To use these, you must sit in sight of the infra-red transmitter 
and wear a ‘neck loop’, which can be used with a hearing aid switched to the ‘T’ position.  If your hearing 
aid does not have the ‘T’ position facility then earphones are also available and can be used 
independently. You can get both neck loops and earphones from Reception.

Toilets
Public toilets are available on each floor of the building next to the lifts.

Recording of Business and Use of Mobile Phones
We are open and transparent about how we make decisions. We allow recording, filming and photography 
at Council, Cabinet and other meetings, which members of the public can attend, so long as proceedings 
at the meeting are not disrupted.  We also allow the use of social media during meetings to bring Council 
issues to the attention of a wider audience.  To minimise disturbance to others attending the meeting, 
please switch your phone or other mobile device to silent / vibrate mode.

Banners, Placards and similar items
You are not allowed to bring into, or display at, any public meeting any banner, placard, poster or other 
similar item.  Failure to do so, will result in the Chairman suspending the meeting until such items are 
removed.

Disturbance by Public
If a member of the public interrupts proceedings at a meeting, the Chairman will warn the person 
concerned.  If they continue to interrupt, the Chairman will order their removal from the meeting room.  If 
there is a general disturbance in any part of the meeting room open to the public, the Chairman may call 
for that part to be cleared. The meeting will be suspended until order has been restored.

Smoking
Since 1 July 2008, South Cambridgeshire District Council has operated a Smoke Free Policy. No one is 
allowed to smoke at any time within the Council offices, or in the car park or other grounds forming part of 
those offices.

Food and Drink
Vending machines and a water dispenser are available on the ground floor near the lifts at the front of the 
building.  You are not allowed to bring food or drink into the meeting room.

mailto:democratic.services@scambs.gov.uk


This page is left blank intentionally.



SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Minutes of a meeting of the Civic Affairs Committee held on
Thursday, 20 March 2014 at 10.00 a.m.

PRESENT: Councillor David Bard – Chairman

Councillors: Kevin Cuffley Simon Edwards
Jose Hales Sebastian Kindersley
Douglas de Lacey Ray Manning
Deborah Roberts Jim Stewart
Robert Turner Bunty Waters

Officers: Graham Aisthorpe-Watts Democratic Services Team Leader
Tracy Mann Development Officer
Fiona McMillan Legal & Democratic Services Manager and 

Monitoring Officer
Jo Mills Planning and New Communities Director
John Pym New Village Senior Planning Officer

Grant Osbourne (Independent Person) and Gillian Holmes (Deputy Independent Person) were in 
attendance by invitation, together with Councillors Roger Hall, Cicely Murfitt, Charles Nightingale, 
Alex Riley, Neil Scarr and Hazel Smith were in attendance.

34. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Alison Elcox and Raymond 
Matthews.  It was reported that Councillor Matthews was currently in hospital and the 
Committee took this opportunity to wish him a speedy recovery.  Councillor David Bard, in 
his capacity as Chairman of the Council, had sent Councillor Matthews a card on behalf of 
the authority.

Councillor Tim Wotherspoon, Portfolio Holder for Northstowe, also submitted his apologies 
for absence with regard to minute number 38.

35. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillor Simon Edwards declared a non-pecuniary interest in minute number 38 with 
regard to the Northstowe Community Governance Review, as a member of Oakington and 
Westwick Parish Council due to the fact that the Parish Council had made representations 
as part of the informal consultation process.  He indicated that he came to this meeting 
with an open mind. 

Councillor Sebastian Kindersley declared a non-pecuniary interest in minute number 39 
with regard to the Trumpington Meadows Community Governance Review, as it was 
within his County Council electoral division.

36. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

The minutes of the previous meeting held on 5 December 2013 were confirmed and 
signed by the Chairman as a correct record.

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



Civic Affairs Committee Thursday, 20 March 2014

37. MOTION TO CONSIDER PROPOSAL FOR RECORDING VOTES

Consideration was given to a report which set out the implications of the Local Authorities 
(Standing Orders) (England) (Amendment) Regulations 2014 and provided the Committee 
with an opportunity to consider a Notice of Motion referred from the meeting of Full 
Council on 27 February 2014 in relation to recorded votes.

The Council was required to amend its Standing Orders so as to include provisions for the 
recording of votes at budget meetings, as explained in a letter appended to the report from 
Brandon Lewis MP, Parliamentary Under Secretary of State, and as set out in the Local 
Authorities (Standing Orders) (England) (Amendment) Regulations 2014.

The Civic Affairs Committee unanimously RECOMMENDED to Full Council the 
introduction of a new paragraph 16.6 headed ‘Recorded vote on budget decisions’ to the 
Council’s Standing Orders, to read:

“If the Council is considering an item on the Council’s budget or the setting of the Council 
Tax, the names for and against the motion or amendment, abstaining from voting or not 
voting will be taken down in writing and entered into the minutes”.

Councillor Aidan Van De Weyer presented a Notice of Motion to Full Council on 27 
February 2014 and the following resolution was passed:

“This Council requests that the Civic Affairs Committee considers and proposes 
amendments to the Council’s Standing Orders so that all votes, except for those taken by 
affirmation and for appointments, are recorded in the manner described in Standing Order 
16.5 (Recorded Vote).”

In debating the concept of undertaking recorded votes for all decisions made by Council, 
other than those taken by affirmation or for appointments, the following points were noted:

 Members should be able to vote freely at Council meetings without the feeling of 
being pressurised by their political groups, which could happen if recorded votes 
were introduced for the majority of decisions at Full Council meetings;

 there was already provision in the Council’s Standing Orders for a recorded vote to 
be held on any item, and only six Members were required to request this at a 
meeting for it to take place;

 members of the public should be entitled to know how their elected representatives 
voted on specific items at Full Council meetings;

 the letter from Brandon Lewis MP set out positive principles of transparency and 
democratic accountability, which this Council could drive forward by introducing 
recorded votes for the majority of decisions made by Full Council;

 the introduction of this would be a step-change and some Members may feel 
uncomfortable at the prospect of recorded votes, but they had to accept that the 
Council was a political environment;

 the Local Plan was a good example of how a recorded vote could provide an 
effective means of demonstrating to residents how individual votes from Members 
were cast;

 it was unnecessary to formalise this as part of the Constitution when there was 
already provision for recorded votes to take place;

 retaining the current arrangement provided more flexibility;
 the way the electronic voting system worked in the Council Chamber meant that it 

was not possible for anyone in attendance to know which way a Member voted, 
unless a recorded vote was requested;

Page 2



Civic Affairs Committee Thursday, 20 March 2014

 the Council’s leadership did not impose a ‘group whip’ and Members had always 
been able to vote on their conscience.

Councillor Sebastian Kindersley proposed that recorded votes be held for all decisions at 
Full Council meetings, except for those taken by affirmation and for appointments, for a 
trial period of 12 months.  Councillor Jose Hales seconded the proposal and with 3 votes 
in favour and 8 against the proposal was lost.

Voting on the original motion from Full Council, with 4 votes in favour, 6 votes against and 
1 abstention, the motion was lost and the Civic Affairs Committee made no 
recommendations to Full Council on the matter.

38. NORTHSTOWE COMMUNITY GOVERNANCE REVIEW

The Civic Affairs Committee considered a report which provided an update on the 
Longstanton, Oakington and Westwick and Northstowe Boundary Review.

It was noted that officers had completed the public events reported at the previous 
meeting of the Committee on 5 December 2013.  As well as the public events and 
meetings with residents of Rampton Drift, officers had also visited Parish Council meetings 
of Longstanton and Oakington and Westwick to continue discussions in relation to any 
boundary changes.  

Mrs Gill Ashby, Chairman of Longstanton Parish Council, was in attendance and clarified 
that there was a general lack of appetite from local residents to become Parish Councillors 
for Northstowe at this stage, although there had been some interest in establishing an 
informal working group.

(Councillor Roger Hall attended the meeting at this stage of proceedings)

Councillor Simon Edwards reminded the Committee that it would probably be 30 years 
until development moved down to the Oakington area and the Parish Council therefore felt 
that there was no reason at this stage why the boundary should change.  He accepted that 
things may change in 15 or 20 years, but reiterated that there was no need to change the 
boundary now.

Councillor Ray Manning declared a non-pecuniary interest in this item as County 
Councillor for Longstanton.  He asked whether any financial support to fund additional 
clerking responsibilities had been offered to Longstanton Parish Council to assist with the 
number of planning applications it would have to deal with as a result of the Northstowe 
development.  It was noted that the District Council had agreed to provide additional 
funding for this and was in the process of liaising with the Parish Council to establish 
anticipated costs.  

Councillor Sebastian Kindersley reflected on previous experiences with Orchard Park, 
Cambourne and Bar Hill and was of the opinion that the governance arrangements had to 
be up and running as soon as possible.  He felt that an independent Parish Council for 
Northstowe was necessary as it would be making decisions about its own future.  
Councillor Kindersley highlighted that Oakington and Westwick and Longstanton residents 
were very engaged and would be able to sit on a Parish Council for Northstowe, due to the 
fact that they were located within the required distance from the parish boundary.  He 
called for this issue to be moved forward and said that in developing its first town the 
District Council should have an obligation to take the lead and encourage local people to 
do this.  Councillor Kindersley suggested that the aim should be for a Parish Council for 
Northstowe to be established by 2017, but that this be reviewed annually.

Page 3



Civic Affairs Committee Thursday, 20 March 2014

Councillor Alex Riley felt that there should be a move to set the phase one site up as an 
independent entity as soon as possible in readiness for anticipated delivery in April 2017.  
He also reported that the Highways Division at Cambridgeshire County Council had made 
it clear that the phase two site would not be able to take any further traffic until the A14 
had been upgraded and that no houses were anticipated on phase two until 2020.  
Councillor Riley also reflected that west of phase two was all in Oakington, which was 20 
to 30 years away, and north of the Guided Bus Way in Longstanton would not be an issue 
for at least another 30 years.  It was noted that the respective areas of the Northstowe 
development were all completely different and the people living within them at the various 
stages and phases would have changed by the time any decisions needed to be made on 
boundary issues.

The Civic Affairs Committee AGREED with the establishment of an independent 
Northstowe Parish Council with the aim of it commencing in April 2017, but that this be 
reviewed in June 2016.

39. TRUMPINGTON MEADOWS COMMUNITY GOVERNANCE REVIEW

Consideration was given to a report which set out progress to date regarding the potential 
changes to parish boundaries at Haslingfield and Grantchester, in order to create a new 
parish for the development at Trumpington Meadows.

It was reported that officers had attended the Southern Fringe Community Forum with 
displays and information relating to the proposed boundary changes.  Further public 
meetings would be held with Haslingfield Parish Council and Grantchester Parish Council, 
together with residents from both areas, as set out in the report.

A letter had been received from the Trumpington Residents’ Association, which outlined 
support for the proposed new boundaries.

Members were informed that these meetings and correspondence formed part of the 
informal consultation process, as planning applications for the part of the development 
within South Cambridgeshire would not be submitted for at least six months.  

The Civic Affairs Committee NOTED the update.

40. UPDATE ON CODE OF CONDUCT COMPLAINTS

The Civic Affairs Committee considered a report which provided Members with an update 
on complaints cases regarding alleged breaches of the Code of Conduct.

The report was NOTED.

41. DISPENSATIONS GRANTED BY THE MONITORING OFFICER

The Council’s Monitoring Officer reported that, following consultation with the Independent 
Person, dispensations had been granted to Councillors David Bard and Nigel Cathcart to 
enable them to take part in discussions and vote in the extraordinary meeting of Council 
on 13 March 2014 in relation to the proposed Local Plan.  It was noted that Councillor 
Bard’s dispensation was also applicable to any other meetings related to the Local Plan at 
which the site H1/c in Sawston was discussed for a four year period, until March 2018. 

Page 4



Civic Affairs Committee Thursday, 20 March 2014

42. DATES OF NEXT MEETINGS

Further meeting dates for the Civic Affairs Committee were AGREED as follows:

 3 July 2014 – 10.00am
 2 October 2014 – 10.00am
 8 January 2015 – 10.00am
 2 April 2015 – 10.00am

The Meeting ended at 11.20 a.m.

Page 5



This page is left blank intentionally.



 

 

 

Report To: Civic Affairs Committee 25 September 2014
Lead Officer: Legal and Democratic Services Manager 

The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014

Purpose

1. This report sets out the implications of the Openness of Local Government Bodies 
Regulations 2014 that were enacted on 5 August 2014.

Recommendations

2. That the report be noted.

3. That Council be recommended to set the level for officer decisions considered as 
‘materially affecting the Council’s financial position’ at Level 4 in the Council’s 
Financial Regulations and above, i.e. at present values, over £50,000.

Reasons for Recommendations

4. To inform Members of the implications of the introduction of the Openness of Local 
Government Bodies Regulations 2014 and to ensure that a threshold is set for officer 
decisions considered in the Regulations as ‘materially affecting the Council’s financial 
position’, details of which the Council would be obliged to publish.

Background

5. The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014, published on 4 
August 2014, were enacted on 5 August 2014 and build on the Local Government 
(Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) (England) 
Regulations which sought to provide greater openness and transparency in decision 
making for Cabinet/Executive functions.  

6. The new Regulations mean that Councils are now required to make changes, if 
necessary, to permit the filming, photographing, recording, broadcasting and blogging 
of any meeting of the Council which is open to the public, including the use of social 
media.  

7. The Regulations also place an obligation on Councils to record and publish certain 
non-executive decisions made by officers under delegated authority.

Considerations

Filming and reporting of public meetings

8. The Council considered allowing members of the public to film public meetings at its 
meeting on 26 September 2013, where it agreed:

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



 to allow members of the public to film its public meetings in accordance with 
guidance published by the Department of Communities and Local 
Government entitled “Your Council’s Cabinet – going to its meetings, seeing 
how it works”;

 that Standing Order 21.4 of the Council’s Constitution (Recording of Business) 
be amended to read:

“The recording in any format of any meeting of the Council, the Executive, or 
any committee or sub-committee of the Council or the Executive, is permitted, 
except:

- where the Chairman or person presiding the meeting, rules that filming is 
being undertaken in such a way that it is disruptive or distracting to the 
good order and conduction of the meeting;

- where the public have been excluded from the meeting in accordance with 
the Council’s Access to Information Procedure Rules (Rule 10) during the 
consideration of exempt or confidential information.

9. This decision by Council on 26 September 2013 means that no further decision is 
required in order to comply with the Openness of Local Government Bodies 
Regulations 2014 with regard to the filming and reporting of the Council’s public 
meetings.

Decisions made by officers under delegated authority

10. The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014 set out new 
obligations about non-executive decisions made by officers under delegated authority 
and apply to those decisions made by officers that are a specific express 
authorisation, or under a general authorisation, to take such decisions and the effect 
is to:

 grant a permission or license;
 affect the rights of an individual;
 award a contract or incur expenditure which, in either case, materially affects 

the Council’s financial position.

11. A written record must be produced and published as soon as reasonably practicable 
after the decision has been made and must contain the following information:

 the date the decision was taken;
 a record of the decision taken along with reasons for the decision;
 details of alternative options, if any, considered and rejected;
 any background papers.

12. New guidance has now been issued alongside the new Regulations entitled “Open 
and Accountable Local Government – a guide for the press and public on attending 
and reporting meetings of local government”.  This replaces the guidance quoted in 
paragraph 8 above.

13. The guidance makes reference to the fact that officers take many administrative and 
operational decisions in undertaking their day to day work at the Council and makes it 
clear that these decisions do not need to be recorded.  Examples of decisions that do 
not need to be recorded may include:

Page 8



 routine administrative and organisational decisions, such as giving permission 
to a local society to use the authority’s premises;

 decisions on operational matters such as day to day variations in services;
 decisions to give business relief to individual traders;
 decisions to review the benefit claims of an individual applicant;
 decisions taken in response to requests under the Data Protection Act 1998 or 

the Freedom of Information Act 2000.

14. A number of decisions made routinely by officers under delegated authority that fall 
within the criteria set out in paragraph 10 above, not including financial decisions as 
referred in the third bulletin point of that paragraph, have been identified in the 
following service areas:

 Planning;
 Licensing;
 Building Control.

15. Details relating to the planning decisions taken by officers under delegated authority 
are already published on the Council’s website, which can be accessed via the 
following link:

http://plan.scambs.gov.uk/swiftlg/apas/run/Wchweeklylist.displayPlanningLists

16. Details relating to licensing applications and permissions granted by officers under 
delegated authority are already accessible via the Council’s licensing webpage on the 
Personal Register or Premises Register, which can be viewed using the following link:

https://www.scambs.gov.uk/content/licensing-act-2003

17. Details relating to the decisions taken by officers in Building Control will very shortly 
be available on the Council’s Access to Information page.  Testing is being 
undertaken to ensure that the information required by the new Regulations can be 
published automatically via the APAS system currently used by Building Control.

18. The new Regulations place an obligation on the Council to publish decisions made by 
officers where they result in the award of a contract or incur expenditure which, in 
either case, materially affects the Council’s financial position.  In accordance with the 
guidance, ‘what constitutes the material threshold is a judgement that should be 
made by individual bodies’.  The Civic Affairs Committee is therefore requested to 
make a recommendation to Council on the amount that should be set as a threshold 
for those decisions made by officers that are considered to materially affect the 
Council’s financial position.

19. The Committee may wish to recommend the threshold at one of the levels already set 
out in the Council’s procurement process as part of its’ Financial Regulations.  Level 
4, for example, includes the awarding of contracts between the value of £50,001 and 
£120,000.  A breakdown of the number of decisions made by officers over the last 
two years, and the respective values, for levels 4 and above is outlined in the below 
table:

Page 9

http://plan.scambs.gov.uk/swiftlg/apas/run/Wchweeklylist.displayPlanningLists
https://www.scambs.gov.uk/content/licensing-act-2003
https://www.scambs.gov.uk/content/licensing-act-2003


Level 4 5

Value £50,001 to £120,000 £120,001 to EU Value 
(Currently £172,000 goods 
and services and £4.2 million 
for works

No. of contracts 15 8

Value £1,248,450 £4,137,428

20. It is recommended that the threshold for these decisions be set at over £50,000, 
which equates to anything above Level 3 in the Council’s Financial Regulations.

21. Details of these financial decisions made by officers under delegated authority, in 
accordance with the agreed threshold, will also be published on the Council’s Access 
to Information page of its website.

22. There may be other decisions taken by officers under delegated authority not covered 
in the categories set out in paragraph 14 or 18 above that fall within the requirements 
of the new Regulations.  In such circumstances these will be published via the 
Council’s Modern.Gov document management system as and when necessary.

23. Officers are currently investigating better ways to collate and publish information 
relating to the decisions taken by officers under delegated powers, so the Access to 
Information pages of the Council’s website referred to in this report may be subject to 
change.

Options

24. The Civic Affairs Committee could opt to recommend a higher or lower threshold for 
the amount considered as ‘materially affecting the Council’s financial position’ in 
respect of those decisions taken by officers under delegated authority.

25. However, any other amount would not be consistent with the approval level for 
Cabinet, as set out in paragraph 27 below.

Implications

26. In the writing of this report, taking into account financial, legal, staffing, risk 
management, equality and diversity, climate change, community safety and any other 
key issues, the following implications have been considered: -

Financial
27. The threshold recommended for officer decisions taken under delegated authority 

considered as ‘materially affecting the Council’s financial position’ (Level 4 and 
above) is consistent with the amount that Cabinet is authorised to spend or commit 
the Council to within approved policy.  Cabinet must seek approval from Council if it 
wishes to spend or commit, after opportunities for virement have been exhausted, in-
year supplementary revenue and capital estimates above level 3 (£50,000).

Legal
28. The changes proposed in this report are necessary in order for the Council to be 

compliant with the Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014.

Page 10



Risk Management
29. The Council’s Executive Management Team has been briefed on the implications of 

the changes required as part of the new Regulations.  Senior managers across the 
Council have also been made aware of the new requirements, particularly with regard 
to the recording and publication of officer decisions made under delegated powers, to 
ensure that they understand their obligations so that the Council is fully compliant 
with the Regulations.

Consultation responses (including from the Youth Council)

30. No consultation on the content of this report has been undertaken.

Effect on Strategic Aims

Engagement – we aim to engage with residents, parishes and businesses to 
ensure we deliver first class services and value for money

31. The implications of the Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014 will 
assist South Cambridgeshire District Council in delivering the above strategic aim by 
providing greater public access to information relating to decisions made by officers 
under delegated authority.

Background Papers

32. The following background papers were relied upon in the writing of this report: 

Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014:
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2014/2095/contents/made

‘Open and Accountable Local Government’ – a guide for the press and public on 
attending and report meetings of local government:
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/343182
/140812_Openness_Guide.pdf

Report Author: Graham Watts – Democratic Services Team Leader
Telephone: (01954) 713030

Page 11

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2014/2095/contents/made
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/343182/140812_Openness_Guide.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/343182/140812_Openness_Guide.pdf


This page is left blank intentionally.



REPORT TO: Civic Affairs Committee 25 September 2014
LEAD OFFICER: Head of Legal and Democratic Services 

Histon & Impingon and Girton Parish Councils and Darwin Green 2/3 Community 
Governance Review

Purpose

1. To update Civic Affairs Committee with regard to progress so far as regards the 
intention to change parish boundaries at Impington and Girton parishes in order to 
create a new parish for the development at Darwin Green 2/3.

Recommendations

2. It is recommended that the Committee notes progress and approves the action plan 
included in this report.

Reasons for Recommendations

3. The parish councils of Histon & Impington and Girton have requested the District 
Council investigate the options in relation to changing the parish boundaries for 
Impington and Girton in order to establish a new parish at Darwin Green 2/3.

Background

4. The development at Darwin Green 2/3 (previously known as NIAB) includes 1100 
homes (including affordable housing), a secondary school, formal and informal public 
open space, cycle and footpath links to Histon, Impington, Girton and Cambridge, 
equipped areas of play, buffer zone and landscape bunding separating from A14, 
country park, primary school, recycling facilities, bowling green, and a community 
building.  The development straddles the parish boundary separating Girton from 
Impington, with most of the open space and sports provision being located in Girton 
parish and most of the houses and other buildings being located in the parish of 
Impington.  The Darwin Green 2/3 development complements the Darwin Green 1 
development of approximately 1593 homes and a range of health, library, and 
community facilities, which is located in Cambridge City.  Once completed, the total 
number of new homes across Darwin Green 1 and 2/3 could be up to 3000 = approx 
7500 people. 

Considerations

5. The parishes of Histon, Impington and Girton are long-established rural villages in the 
District of South Cambridgeshire while the Darwin Green developments will be new 
communities that are urban extensions to the City of Cambridge.  People moving in to 
Darwin Green are likely to feel much more that they live in Cambridge City than in a 

Page 13

Agenda Item 5



rural village, and similar to Orchard Park and Trumpington Meadows, will have 
different needs and expectations to those of people living in long-established rural 
communities. 

6. The Darwin Green developments are further complicated by the fact that they 
straddle parish boundaries in a way that Trumpington Meadows doesn’t. This could 
lead to complications in relation to S106 and precept monies if open space and sports 
facilities for Darwin Green 2 are in a different parish to that of the housing and other 
facilities and buildings. Issues such as ownership of facilities and the cost of running 
and maintaining open space, sports and community facilities could become more 
complicated if they remain in different parishes.

7. Officers have attended the parish council meetings of both Girton and Histon and 
Impington and are part of the Darwin Green Working Group set up by Histon & 
Impington Parish Council to investigate options for new governance arrangements.  It 
is intended to carry out early informal consultations with the local communities to 
determine the best place for any new parish boundary lines to be drawn and the 
timing for any formal consultation and review.

 
Action

 
When

 
Who

 
Continue attending Darwin Green Working Group (includes 
representation from Histon & Impington Parish Council) and 
Girton Parish Council.

 
On-going 1 x 
monthly

 
TM

 
Evening Public Meeting at Histon Parish Council Office

 
27 November 
2014

 
TM

 
Saturday morning informal public drop in at Histon High 
Street (Stacks facility)

 
6 December 
2014

 
TM

 
Evening Public Meeting and Saturday morning drop in at 
Girton to be confirmed for early 2015

 
January/February 
2015

 
TM

 
Agree draft new boundaries for potential new parish and report 
back to Civic Affairs Committee

 
March 2015

 
FM/TM

Implications

8. There are no significant implications.

Financial
9. If a CGR is to be undertaken there will be associated costs of publicity and 

consultation which need to be met by the Council.  It is not possible to quantify those 
costs at this stage.

Legal
10. Compliance with the 2007 Act and associated guidance will help avoid challenge to 

the process of the outcome.

Page 14



Staffing
11. It is expected that a CGR can be carried out within existing staff resources in New 

Communities and Legal.

Risk Management
12. There are no significant implications.

Equality and Diversity

13. There are no significant implications.

Climate Change

14. There are no significant implications.

Consultation responses (including from the Youth Council)

15. The Youth Council is keen to see new governance arrangements set up for Darwin 
Green because it will be an urban extension so feel more part of the City than a rural 
District.

Background Papers
None

Report Author: Tracy Mann – Development Officer
Telephone: (01954) 713342

Page 15



This page is left blank intentionally.



REPORT TO: Civic Affairs Committee 25 September 2015
LEAD OFFICER: Monitoring Officer 

UPDATE ON CODE OF CONDUCT COMPLAINTS

Purpose

1. To update members on complaints cases regarding alleged breaches of the code of 
conduct.

Recommendations

2. That the Civic Affairs Committee note the progress of outstanding complaints and the 
conclusion of cases resolved since the last meeting.

3. Complaint cases concluded since last meeting

(a) CORCOM 1046

This complaint was made by a two parish councillors and a resident about a parish 
councillor. As one of the councillors was the chairman of the parish council the parish 
council requested that the complaint was dealt with by the Monitoring Officer. The 
complaints involve failure to declare interests at the parish council. Before a decision 
could be reached on the written evidence by the Monitoring Officer and Independent 
Person, the councillor resigned and the complaint case had to be closed.

(b) CORCOM 1178

This complaint was an amalgamation of number of complaints received from 
members of the public and parish councillors about the behaviour of a district 
councillor at a parish council meeting and in email exchanges following that meeting. 
The complainants alleged that the district councillor was rude, abusive  and 
aggressive and verbally attacked the parish council chairman in relation to a 
proposed planning application. The Monitoring Officer and the Independent Person 
considered the legal judgements on freedom of speech and their application to 
political debate and behaviour by councillors at a local authority meeting and 
concluded that the complaint should not progress to a formal investigation and that no 
further action should be taken.  

(c) CORCOM 1290

This complaint was referred to SCDC by a parish council in relation to complaints 
made by two members of the public about another parish councillor in response to his 
behaviour at a village event.  After considering the circumstances the Monitoring 
Officer advised that she did not consider that the councillor was acting in his official 
capacity as a parish councillor when the behaviour occurred and so the complaint 
should not be taken any further by the parish council. 

Page 17

Agenda Item 6



4. New complaint cases/cases outstanding at 16th September 2014:

(a) CORCOM 1289

This complaint was made by a member of the public about a District Councillor and 
concerned an alleged failure to declare an interest in relation to a planning 
application.  The Councillor has denied any need to do so as no such interest existed 
and the complainant has been asked to provide evidence of the alleged close 
association or the case will be closed.

Other complaints/issues

5. The Monitoring Officer continues to advise a number of parish councils in relation to 
conduct-related issues such as when and how to declare interests which do not form 
the basis of a formal complaint.

6. Since the last meeting advice has been given to/in relation to the following parish 
councils on code of conduct or governance issues:

 Fowlmere
 Shepreth
 Steeple Morden
 Haslingfield
 Longstanton
 Melbourn
 Cottenham
 Waterbeach

7. The Monitoring Officer attended Coton Parish Council on 9th September to give 
training and advice on the application of the code of conduct and parish dispensation 
procedures.

Background Papers
Localism Act 2011
SCDC Code of Conduct Complaints procedure

Report Author: Fiona McMillan – Monitoring Officer
Telephone: (01954) 713027

Page 18



Page 19

Agenda Item 8



Page 20


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	4 The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014
	5 Darwin Green Community Governance Review
	6 Update on Code of Conduct Complaints
	8 District Electoral Review

